
MINUTES 
BRISTOL SELECT BOARD 

January 23, 2014 
 

PRESENT:  Select Board Members: Don Milbrand, Betsy Schneider, Shaun Lagueux, and Town 

Administrator Michael Capone.  Select Board members Joe Denning and Janet Cote were 

absent from the meeting.   

 

Mr. Milbrand opened the meeting of the Bristol Select Board at 6:02 PM.   

 

Minutes of January 9th, 2014  

Mr. Lagueux motioned to accept the minutes of January 9th as submitted, seconded by Ms. 
Schneider.  The Board voted 3-0 in favor of the motion.   
 
Manifest of January 23, 2014 

Mr. Lagueux motioned to accept the manifest of January 9th as submitted, seconded by Ms. 
Schneider.  Mr. Lagueux inquired on two items included on the manifest: a $1,000 deductible to 
Grappone and Upper Valley Humane Society (UVHS) bills.  Mr. Capone explained the detail 
behind those expenses and the arrangement the Town has with Kenney’s Kennel and UVHS.  
Ms. Schneider inquired on a manifest item for Body Armor in the amount of $2,469.00 since 
there was another purchase similar within the past month.  Mr. Milbrand mentioned that 
perhaps Chief Lewis could discuss this item later in the meeting when he returns.   
 
New Business: 
Donna Quinn-Regional Public Health Administrator- PHCCNH 
Ms. Quinn updated the Board on some of the changes with the Regional Public Health Network 
since last June.  The re-introduction of school vaccine programs for students provided 15-20% 
with flu shots.  They are seeking ways to increase the number of students in the program.  They 
also offered Tdap vaccines to the public in August and September.  Point of Dispensing (POD) 
Sites were set up this past fall as well.  Chief Yannuzzi assisted in organizing the Newfound POD 
Sites.  Plymouth State University and Newfound will become interchangeable in this effort next 
year.  Within the next few months a Public Health Advisory will be developed.  The Board 
thanked Ms. Quinn for coming to the meeting.   
 
Wellness/Fitness Policy 
The Board was provided with a copy of the proposed Wellness/Fitness Policy.  Mr. Capone 
provided some background on the policy and what the Town does to encourage fitness and 
healthy lifestyles.  The Board was asked to review the policy.  Chief Yannuzzi had worked with 
Human Resources on developing the policy with the next step being department specific fitness 
policies in conjunction with this.  Ms. Schneider motioned to accept the Wellness/Fitness Policy, 
seconded by Mr. Lagueux.  The Board voted 3-0 in favor of adopting the policy.   
 



Mark Bucklin- Quarterly Review 
Mr. Bucklin updated the Board on some recent repairs to Highway Equipment.  Mr. Bucklin 
mentioned that because of all of the stormy weather early in the season he has concerns with 
the amount of sand he has left.  He requested additional funding for the 2014 budget in the 
amount of $5,000 for budget line 01-4311-682 as the current supply has been used more than 
anticipated.  This was also discussed on Monday and approved by the Budget Committee.  Mr. 
Lagueux motioned to increase the sand budget line, seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The Board 
voted 3-0 in favor of the motion.   
 
Mr. Lagueux stated that the Board should address the sidewalk tractor issue.  Mr. Capone 
mentioned that the Budget Committee had voted at their last deliberative session to ask him to 
bring this matter back to the Board for reconsideration and to ask that the Board place the 
purchase of a sidewalk tractor on the warrant for Town Meeting.  He discussed the timeline for 
warrant articles and suggested the Board may want to consider an additional meeting next 
week to discuss this and other budget items that have come up.  Mr. Bucklin stated that they 
had a demo on a sidewalk tractor recently.  Fully equipped models can cost as much as 
$189,000 however reconditioned equipment could be purchased for as little at $60,000-
$70,000.  Mr. Lagueux inquired on the amount listed on the warrant article.  Mr. Capone will 
prepare an article with the basic language in place for purposes of discussion.  Ms. Schneider 
inquired on the longevity of the equipment and the warranty period.  Mr. Bucklin stated he 
expects the equipment to last approximately 20 years however most models only offer a one 
year warranty.  
 
 Ms. Schneider inquired on a new product, beet juice, that is being used on sidewalks as pre-
treatment for snow and ice removal.  Mr. Bucklin explained how the beet juice method works.   
He also mentioned some other products that could be utilized.  
 
Mr. Bucklin discussed the Elementary School parking lot maintenance agreement.  In years past 
the parking lot was plowed by the Town during storms.  Mr. Bucklin stated that the issues that 
have come up recently are all due to timing as the Highway Department must get all roads 
cleared and ready for school buses in addition to the lot maintenance.  The agreement 
originally existed when the School was not a district school however it is now considered one.  
The Board asked the Town Administrator to speak with the School Business Administrator 
about the current agreement.   
 
Mr. Bucklin discussed the informal procedure in place for residents to take small amounts of 
sand from the transfer station for personal use.   He noted that they are happy to provide sand 
to residents, but that it must be limited so that there is enough for everyone.  The Board 
suggested to Mr. Bucklin to limit the amount of sand individuals can take and to post a sign at 
the Transfer Station explaining this to residents.   
 
Mr. Bucklin noted that he was in the process of getting a quote from the State with regard to 
the additional directional signs to be placed in the areas around North Main Street to assist 
vehicles using the one way section of the road.    



Mr. Capone and Mr. Bucklin had discussed revising the existing road standards to include the 
requirement that all new roads be paved.  The Board had been looking for more information 
with regard to the benefits of paving vs. gravel roads.   Mr. Bucklin felt that a well-built paved 
road will require less maintenance over time than a gravel road.  He suggested that the Board 
consider that paving be included in the site plan/subdivision requirements for new roads only.   
 
Mr. Capone reviewed the Grant-Barter Policy as it is proposed.  Based upon his research, the 
policy covers the Town for liability as the equipment is only loaned out with an operator.  The 
policy has been reviewed by NHMA counsel and Primex which agreed with the contents.  Legal 
requirements are all covered in the policy as stated.  The Board decided not to make any 
decisions until the full Board is present.   
 
Police Chief- Michael Lewis 
Chief Lewis discussed a position as presented to the School Board for a School Resource Officer 
(SRO) in the amount of $51,840.00.  He provided some national statistics in support of the SRO 
position. The role of the SRO was reviewed.  Presently most Newfound Regional School District 
Towns each have their own elementary school.  The Middle School and High School are 
regional.  Chief Lewis stated that conversations with Mom’s and Dad’s in the school system and 
the individuals he speaks to seem to be supportive of this.   
 
Mr. Lagueux inquired on the funding and administration of the position.  Chief Lewis explained 
that the Police Department would issue an invoice to the SAU Office which would then be paid 
to them to cover the position’s salary, benefits, retirement and any other fees associated. 
Benefits can vary depending on the health care package selected.  Ms. Schneider inquired on 
the impact to Bristol.  Chief Lewis explained that the $51,840.00 is paid for by the School 
District with no impact to the Town.  Ms. Schneider stated that this should be added to the 
Town budget so the Budget Committee can also discuss the matter which shows both the 
expenditure and revenue for this position.  She also suggested that the taxpayers understand 
the logistics behind the position as it will be presented at Town Meeting. 
 
Ms. Schneider inquired if this would add another officer to the current staff or if a part-time 
officer would be used.  Chief Lewis explained this would be an additional officer that works 40 
hours per week for the School District.  During the summer, the SRO would attend all trainings 
required by Police Department.  This person could also serve as back up for vacations, sick time 
or extra coverage needed during the summer months.  All training costs would be paid for by 
the School District.  A memorandum of understanding would be agreed upon between the 
Town and School.  Ms. Schneider stated that she learned of this position at the budget hearing 
at the School earlier this month.  Chief Lewis replied that he had provided Mr. Milbrand with an 
email advising him that the position was under consideration. Mr. Capone stated it was 
mentioned at the September 5th meeting.  Mr. Milbrand also added that there was an email 
from the Chief updating the Board that the School had approached him on the subject.  Mr. 
Lagueux also stated he does recall this information.  
 
 



The existing MOU with the school district will be sent out to Board members.  This officer will 
also have access to a cruiser for working hours.  Mr. Milbrand inquired on whether there would 
be any savings by having and SRO present at school.  Chief Lewis stated it would be difficult to 
pinpoint any savings as the SRO would be responsible for various activities.  Mr. Milbrand asked 
the Chief if the equipment, outfitting and the cruiser will be part of the $51,840.  Chief Lewis 
stated it was included.  Ms. Schneider stated that this would add one more to the current 
number of Police Officers.  Mr. Milbrand clarified that this position would be dedicated to the 
schools.  Mr. Milbrand suggested that the Board discusses the matter at next week’s meeting to 
determine if the Town should add it into the budget.   
 
Ms. Schneider asked the Chief about the armor plates purchased for the vests.  Chief Lewis 
explained they were purchased to be added to the vests.  The plates can last up to 10-15 years 
if they are not damaged.  The vests themselves can last up to three years.  Chief Lewis 
explained as long as they are not damaged, he does not anticipate replacing any more.  
Additional vests will be purchased this year as they are replaced annually or upon hire of a new 
employee.   
 
Mr. Capone asked a question of the Chief from a discussion with the Budget Committee.  Could 
the Crossing Guards be eliminated with the use of Police Officers?  Chief Lewis explained that it 
would cost more to have a Police Officer cover the crosswalk duty.   
 
Appointment of TAC Committee Representative 
Mr. Milbrand discussed interest by Steve Favorite to be reappointed to the Transportation 
Advisory Committee at the Regional Planning Commission. Ms. Schneider motioned to 
authorize Steve Favorite at the TAC Committee Representative for Bristol with Michael Capone 
as the alternate, seconded by Mr. Lagueux.  The Board voted 3-0 in favor of the motion.   
 
Budget Transfers 
Mr. Capone began the review of the process for budget transfers.  Ms. Schneider inquired 
whether the Board could wait until next week’s meeting so that everyone can be present.  The 
Board agreed to postpone the discussion on the transfers and encumbrances until January 30th.   
 
Town Administrator’s Report  
Mr. Capone provided the Chairman with a list of Planning, Zoning and Historic District 
Commission appointments for the Board to consider.  Mr. Milbrand inquired if appointments 
could all be done in one motion.  Mr. Capone suggested they each committee be moved 
separately.  Mr. Lagueux motioned to re-appoint Dan Paradis to the Planning Board, seconded 
by Ms. Schneider. The Board voted 3-0 in favor of the motion.   
 
Mr. Lagueux made a motion to re-appoint Richard LaFlamme and Lorraine Bohmiller to the 
Zoning Board, seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The Board voted 3-0 in favor of the motion.   
 
Mr. Lagueux made a motion to re-appoint Larry Douglas to the Historic District Commission, 
seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The Board voted 3-0 in favor of the motion.   



 
Mr. Capone presented the Board with a purchase order from Water & Sewer.  A 905 gallon tank 
used to store sodium hypochlorite has a leak that cannot be fixed.  The plumbing attached to 
the tank is specific to that equipment which means the same tank needs to be purchased as a 
replacement.  Mr. Lagueux motioned to authorize the purchase requisition # 00461 in the 
amount of $4,070 plus $775 freight to replace a leaking 905 gallon sodium hypochlorite tank, 
seconded by Ms. Schneider.  The Board voted 3-0 in favor of the motion.   
 
Mr. Capone discussed a proposal to continue a contract with Integrys Bulk Energy to purchase 
electricity.  The current contract expires in February.  Updated pricing was provided to the 
Board.  Due to the high rates currently in place, it was suggested that the Town return to PSNH 
for one to two months and sign a new agreement for in April when the rates go back down. 
Mr. Capone suggested that the Board allow him to continue monitoring the rates without 
locking into a rate at this time, but providing him with the authority to lock in at a point when it 
was best to do so.  Mr. Lagueux suggested that the Board consider locking in a rate now.   Mr. 
Capone noted that the rates had increased in the two weeks since he last received rates.  The 
Board inquired whether they could lock in and then change if a lower rate came up. Mr. Capone 
agreed to contact Integrys in the morning to inquire.  Mr. Lagueux motioned to accept the 
electric rates as presented with UMG Bulk Energy, locking in with Integrys in April seconded by 
Ms. Schneider.  With no further discussion by the Board, the motion passed in a 3-0 vote.    
 
Mr. Capone reviewed a request from Mr. Smith for additional parking spaces for the residential 
property he is developing on Central Street.  Mr. Capone has been reviewing some sample 
language for a lease agreement that the Town can put in place for parking.  Mr. Capone 
inquired whether the Board wanted to enter into a one year agreement or draft a warrant 
article for a five year agreement.  He recommended a one year agreement which would allow 
time for Mr. Smith to obtain all the necessary approvals.  Mr. Capone will provide the Board 
with a draft agreement at the next meeting.   
 
Mr. Capone reviewed the first petitioned warrant article received for Town Meeting.  It is for 
the repair of the roof at the Old Fire Station/ Historical Society Building.   
 
Mr. Capone informed the Board that he had spoken with Bridgewater Select Board member 
Terry Murphy with regard to joining efforts with Bristol and possibly Hebron to seek joint 
intervener status in the Wild Meadows Wind Project proposed for Alexandria and Danbury. 
 
Mr. Capone provided the Board with some sample language for the Board to consider with 
regard to this issue.  Wording on the warrant and other language needs to be discussed by the 
Board and decided on before the deadline.  
 
Mr. Capone mentioned that the Budget Committee had also suggested that the Board 
reconsider placing a warrant article for a power stretcher for the Fire Department before the 
voters at Town Meeting.  Chief Yannuzzi had suggested this previously.  Mr. Capone will work 
on a draft for this.   



 
Mr. Capone informed the Board that he and Mrs. Cote had a discussion with regard to changing 
the wording for the Playground Equipment warrant article.  Based on funding sources and grant 
requirements, recent changes were made to the article to list the total expense for the 
purchases and include the proceeds from the Kelley Park Equipment Fund to be used. 
 
Les Dion called Mr. Capone to inform him that the funds from the KaBOOM Grant would be 
paid directly to the manufacturer.  This may require the article to be rewritten once more to 
accurately reflect the funds to be used.  Mr. Capone has a call into DRA to get their opinion. 
 
There was also a discussion further clarifying budget funding for the Kelley Park Master Plan 
Equipment Line.  Ms. Dion explained that if the Warrant Article to purchase the playground 
equipment failed, they would need $15,000 to repair the old equipment to keep it compliant.   
 
Mr. Capone noted that he could write some contingent language into the article for the Board’s 
consideration.  Mr. Milbrand suggested that the Board discuss the matter when the entire 
Board is present.   
 
Mr. Lagueux inquired on the abatements given to the Board for signatures.  Mr. Milbrand 
stated the computer contract and the abatements could wait until next week when the full 
Board is present.   
 
Select Board Items 
Ms. Schneider inquired on whether the Board had agreed to fund anything towards A Day Away 
Program.  The Board agreed to wait until the next meeting to discuss.   
 
Mr. Lagueux commented on a draft summary report from the Town of Bristol Community 
Survey reviewed by the Planning Board.  Results will be available in the next few weeks and will 
be placed on the website.   
 
Public Comments 
Paul Manganiello inquired on the approximately $14,000 in funds present in the Kelley Park 
Master Plan line in the budget.  Mr. Capone replied that he has those funds on his list of 
encumbrances to discuss at the next meeting.  Mr. Lagueux explained how they planned to use 
the funds.  Mr. Manganiello also inquired on the details for resurfacing the playground based 
on the insurance company’s recommendations.  Ms. Schneider inquired on whether they could 
encumber funds from the general budget.  Under RSA 32:7, the Town is allowed encumber 
funds.   
 
Carol Huber commented on the SRO position being in the Town budget and that it belongs in 
the School budget.  She also shared her concerns with the fact that if the SRO decides they do 
not want to be the SRO any longer, then Bristol has another Police Officer.  Mr. Milbrand added 
that the School Board cannot hire Police Officers, only a Police Department can.  Ms. Huber 



inquired who was responsible for the Police Officer during the summer months.  Mr. Milbrand 
stated the School is responsible for the officer year round.   
 
Garlyn Manganiello inquired on whether the position was funded for a full 12 months.  Mr. 
Lagueux stated that per the contract, the officer would be attending training for the position 
funded by the School District.  After a conversation on the topic, Mr. Capone read the proposed 
warrant article language from the School.   
 
Paul Simard inquired if the School includes the full salary in their budget, why would the Town 
need to include the same funds in the Town budget.  Ms. Schneider explained they need to 
have the funds in the Town budget only to show the funds coming in and going out as they 
invoice the School for the salary.  Mr. Simard stated that the School tax already comes from the 
taxpayers and that if the Town were to include it in their budget as well it is double taxing the 
residents of Bristol.  Mr. Capone clarified the revenue and expenditure portion of the SRO 
position.   
 
Garlyn Manganiello inquired on the status of the SRO during the summer months.  Mr. Lagueux 
stated that everything is included into the salary over 12 months.  She also asked if there was 
an administrative fee that could be added on to the agreement to cover our time and expenses 
for administering payroll.  Chief Lewis stated there was a fee included in the proposed 
agreement for the SRO to administer payroll and other related expenses.   
 
Margaret Hoyle inquired on who will be responsible for covering expenses such as vehicle use, 
gas, maintenance, insurance, depreciation and other related expenses if this officer is using 
Bristol PD equipment.   
 
Ms. Schneider inquired if the Chief could provide a breakdown of the SRO’s proposed salary.  
Chief Lewis stated that he could do so in non-public session and further explained that the 
details of a contract were not public for purposes of discussion.   
 
Garlyn Manganiello inquired if this SRO position covered other towns within the School District.  
Chief Lewis explained that this position could also be used on other community schools within 
the District.   
 
Paul Simard commented on the salary of the officer and the items included in the amount 
presented.  He asked who would be responsible for the overage if any on the salary.  Chief 
Lewis stated that the required benefit package could impact the final amount however that 
figure would be decided on by the School District.   
 
Paul Manganiello commented on a suggestion made by the Chief of Police by assigning a 
current police officer as the SRO.   
 
Margaret Hoyle presented the Board a picture of the back in parking in the downtown area 
which impacted the ability to clear sidewalks.  She also commented on the back in parking 



during or after snow storms.  She also inquired if the Town had an answer from the State on 
road signage requested for Union Street.  Mr. Capone commented that he would follow up with 
Mr. Bucklin to see what the outcome of his discussion with the State was.  Mr. Capone was not 
optimistic with regard to the State agreeing to pay for the signs placed in their right of way.  
 
Kerrin Rounds stated she was at the meeting for personal reasons and commented on the 
Board’s difficulty transitioning this past year.  She suggested the Board needs to meet more 
frequently as well as more frequent meetings with Department Heads.  Ms. Rounds also invited 
the Board to attend the Public Hearing on the budget on February 10th. 
 
Margaret Hoyle commented on using tax money towards the “A Day Away” program.  Ms. 
Schneider added that she clarified the funding and the intent of this program was going 
towards a non-profit funding group which also is a charitable organization within Bristol.   
 
With no further public business to come before the Board, at 9:00 PM, Mr. Lagueux made a 
motion to enter into non-public session under RSA 91-A: 3 (b) and (e).  It was seconded by Ms. 
Schneider.  The Board voted 3-0 in favor of the motion by a roll call vote. 
 

At 9:35PM, Mr. Lagueux made a motion to come out of non-public session.  The motion was 
seconded by Ms. Schneider.   The Board voted 3-0 in favor of the motion. 
 
At 9:36PM Mr. Lagueux made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Ms. 

Schneider.  The Board voted 3-0 in favor of the motion. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted:  

Kelly Lacasse   
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
Don Milbrand, Select Board    Joe Denning, Select Board  
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Betsy Schneider, Select Board  Janet Cote, Select Board 
 
 
______________________________ 
Shaun Lagueux, Select Board 
 

 


